2. POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. It shall be the duty of the prosecuting attorney when he has knowledge of former 

sentences to the penitentiary of any person convicted of an offense punishable by confinement in 

the penitentiary to give information thereof to the court immediately upon conviction and before 

sentence. Said court shall, before expiration of the term at which such person was convicted 

causes such person or prisoner to be.brought before it, and upon an information filed by the 

prosecuting attorney, setting forth the records ofconvictions and sentences and alleging the 

identity of the prisoner with the person named in each, shall require the prisoner to say whether he

3. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR AND THE MANNER IN WHICH THEY 


WERE DECIDED 

A. Whether the circuit Court of Nicholas County, West Virginia 

improperly sentenced the Petitioner to life in prison in violation of the West Virginia 

Recidivist Statute by failing to comply with the requirements contained therein which 

mandates a trial upon the same during the same term of Court for which the Petitioner is 

convicted of the underlying offense. 

The Circuit Court ruled that the recidivist hearing conducted four (4) months into the next 

tenn of Court was appropriate and sentenced the Petitioner to life in prison. 

B. Whether the Circuit Court's imposition of the life recidivist in this matter is 

unconstitutionally disproportionate and excessive in this matter given the Petitioner's 

criminaliJhistory and the fact that the conviction which triggered the recidivist was not a 

violent offense. 

The Circuit Court found that a life sentence was not disproportionate although the Court 

seriously,questioned the same prior to sentencing the Petitioner to life in prison. 

Co Whether trial counsel in this matter improperly advised the Petitioner to 

stipulate;;the underlying convictions during the Habeas Corpus proceeding. 

lllie Circuit Court denied the Petitioner'~ grounds for ineffective assistance of counsel at 

the Omnilbus hearing. 

4. STATEMENTOFTHECASE 

Petitioner was indicted by a Nicholas County grand jury of the felony offense of child 
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neglect creating a substantial risk of serious bodily injury or death, a violation of West Virginia 

Code, §61-8D-4(e). In a trial before the Honorable Gary Johnson, Petitioner was represented by 

Attorney~Greg Hurley. On AprilS, 2006, the jury returned a verdict of guilty. 

Immediately following the jury verdict, the State filed an Information of Prior Convictions, 

seeking an enhanced sentence pursuant to West Virginia Code, §61-11-19 (commonly, the 

habitual criminal statute). Attorney Hurley was relieved of representing Mr. Holcomb and on 

May 8, 2006, "a licensed Attorney at Law, from the Public Defendant Services Appellate 

Division" was appointed to represent Petitioner in the recidivist proceedings. A new term of 

Court commenced on May 9, 2006, the second Tuesday in May. See Trial Court 

Rules 2.28. 

Attorney Paul Williams filed a Notice of Intent to Appeal the underlying felony conviction 

on May 9. Judge Johnson advised the Chief Justice of this Court that he wished to voluntarily. 

recuse himself from presiding over the recidivist proceedings. Upon a finding that the reasons 

were sufficient, the Hon. Jack Alsop was temporarily assigned to the 28th Circuit to preside over 

this case lby Administrative Order of June 2, 2006. On August 24, the State filed a Motion for 

impositi0n ofLife Sentence, pursuant to the habitual criminal statute. 

On August 1, 2006, a jury convened for the recidivist proceedings returned a verdict 

finding Petitioner to be the same person previously convicted ofprior felonies. On August 25, 

Petitioner filed a Motion to Sentence the Defendant on Underlying Charge and Find that the 

impositi<lm ofa Life sentence would violate the Proportionality Principle of the West Virginia 

Constitution. On August 26, the Court held a hearing on sentencing and post trial motions. 

4 




On September 1, Petitioner filed a Motion to Vacate Judgment and Grant a New Trial in 

the original felony child neglect case. One of the grounds asserted was thefailure of the Court, in 

its Charge to the jury, to instruct the jury on the element of gross neglect. The Charge presented 

to the Jury was as follows: 

"To prove commission of child Neglect Creating Risk of Serious 

Bodily Injury or Death as contained in the indictment, the State must prove each 

of the following elements beyond a reasonable doubt: 

1. 	 The defendant, Robert Lee Holcomb, 
2. 	 In Nicholas County, West Virginia 
3. 	 On or about the 4th day of February, 2005 
4. 	 did neglect said child, ad 
5. 	 by such neglect to S. J. created the risk of serious bodily 

injury or death to S. J ......" 

At trial, there were no objections the charge. 

ONer the State's objection, the Trial Court granted the defense motion and awarded 

Petitioner a new trial by an Order entered October 13, 2006. The new trial was held on 

January 4,2007. The jury's verdict was that Petitioner is guilty of the felony offense of gross 

child newlect creating a substantial risk of serious bodily injury or death. Once again, the 

prosecutipn announced to the Court that the State intended to file a recidivist information against 

Mr. Holcomb. The Court's Trial Order on the conviction of gross child neglect was entered 

March 5, 2007. 

Notice of the "Information ofPrior Conviction" was filed in the Office of the Circuit Clerk 

on January 5, the same date that trial counsel was served (Appendix page 51). A copy of the 

Notice that shows Petitioner was personally served on January 8,the same day the September 
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2006 term of the N~cholas County Circuit Court adjourned (Appendix page 58). The January 

tenn commenced on January 9,2007 (Appendix page 67). Nothing in the record suggests that 

Petitioner appeared to answer the Recidivist charges until a hearing/trial on April 30, (Appendix 

page 67). The parties appeared for trial, on the same but infonned the Court that they had reached 

an agreement regarding the Infonnation of Prior Convictions. The Agreement entered into by the 

parties whereas the Petitioner would admit the allegations of the prior offenses as set forth in the 

infonnation of prior conviction and get no benefit therefrom by the State (Appendix pages 124, 

125). 

F0110wing the agreed fmdings of fact, the Court adjudged that Petitioner is the same 

person convicted of the offense described in indictment 06-F-4, and furthennore, that he was the 

same person named in the five count recidivist infonnation. Petitioner was sentenced to life in 

prison. 'Fnal Counsel gave Notice of Intent to Appeal on May 9, 2007. The period for filing an 

appeal was subsequently extended until October 27. The undersigned Appellate Counsel moved 

to have P~titioner re-sentenced for purposes of appeal, and by its Order ofDecember 19, the 

motion was granted. Counsel again gave Notice of Intent to Appeal, on January 8,2008. An 

appeal is~rosecuted from the Order of December 19, 2007. 

On February 13, 2008 an Appeal was filed with the West Virginia Supreme Court as to the 

aforesai&,conviction and habitual criminal life sentence. On September 4, 2008 the West Virginia 

SupremeiCourt ofAppeals refused the Petitioner's Appeal. On April 22, 2011 the Petitioner filed 

a Habeas.Corpus Petition in this matter and an Omnible Habeas Corpus hearing was conducted by 

the Circuit Court on 26th day of August, 2011. That the Petitioner asserted various grounds in the 
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Habeas Corpus Petition (Appendix page 61) but for purposes of this appeal, Petitioner is 

specifica1!ly asserting that the Circuit Court did not conduct a recidivist proceeding within the term 

ofCourt for which the Petitioner was convicted and did not comply with W.Va. Code §61-11-19 

and trial counsel was ineffective as to advise on admitting the recidivist allegations. Following 

the Omnibus hearing, the Circuit Court took the matter under advisement and issued a written 

Order entered on the 22nd day of November, 2011 which denied the relief requested in the Habeas 

Corpus Petition (Appendix page 20). On March 2, 2012 the Circuit Court entered an Order 

appointing subsequent counsel to file the appeal of the Habeas Corpus matter. 

5. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Petitioner contends that the life sentence he received pursuant to West Virginia 

habitual criminal statute is illegal as the State of West Virginia failed to comply with the 

mandato!}' procedural requirements of said statute. This Court has held that there must be strict, 

compliant and statutory language with respect to criminal statute and requirements of law as set 

forth by our legislature and has further held in prior cases that the Court's must strictly comply 

with the terms contained in the recidivist act. State v. Cavallaro, 210 W. Va. 237, 557 S.E. 2d 291 

(2001, per curiam): The West Virginia Habitual Criminal statute/ recidivist act requires that the 

prosecutiCims ofpersons for second or third offense must be conducted before the expiration of the 

term in which the person was convicted. In this case, the Prosecuting Attorney filed a recidivist 

petition on the last day of the tenn of Court following the Petitioner's conviction. The Petitioner 

was not cpnfronted with the same and brought to trial until the following term of Court some four 

(4) months later. As such, the Petitioner contends that the State of West Virginia failed to 
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comply with the statutory requirements of the habitual criminal statute and accordingly the life 

sentence imposed by the Circuit. Court is illegal and should be set aside. 

Ute Petitioner further contends that the.1ife sentence he received pursuant to the West 

Virginia Habitual Criminal statute is unconstitutional as the same is disproportionate as the 

offense for which he was convicted was not a violent offense as determined by this Court, and his 

prior offenses were stale and did not rise to the level to support a life sentence. Accordingly, the 

Petitioner contends under the proportionality principles or constitutIon the life sentence imposed 

upon the Petitioner was cruel and inhuman and therefore should be set aside. 

The Petitioner contends that trial counsel, during his Habeas Corpus proceeding, advised 

him to emter a plea to admit the allegations contained in the Habeas Corpus Petition without 

realizing any benefit from the State of West Virginia with respect to the same. As such, the 

Petitioner was denied effective assistance of counsel during the Habeas Corpus proceedings and 

the ultimate sentence of life in prison would be unconstitutional due to the same and should be set 

aside. 

6. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

C@unsel for the Petitioner asserts that oral argument in this case is requested pursuant to 

Rule 19 as Petitioner asserts that this matter has been clearly ruled on by the Court and further 

asserts that applying the procedural facts in this matter to the procedural requirements of the 

recidivistact and per case law would make this matter appropriate for either a memorandum 

decision or other opinion. 
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7. ARGUMENT 

A, Whether the circuit Court of Nicholas County, West Virginia 

improperly sentenced the Petitioner to life in prison in violation of the West Virginia 

Recidivist Statute by failing to comply with the requirements contained therein which 

mandates a trial upon the same during the same term of Court for which the Petitioner is 

convicted. of the underlying offense; 

The procedure, as set out in the habitual criminal statute, expressly requires that before a 

sentence of life imprisonment may be lawfully· imposed, the prosecuting attorney must file an 

information with the court of such sentences "immediately upon conviction and before sentence" 

and "said; court shall, before expiration of the term at which such person was convicted" proceed 

to confront the convicted person with the charges for the purpose of identifying the convicted 

person with the person so previously convicted. State ex rei Housden v. Adams. 143 W. Va. 601, 

103 S. E.2d 873(1958) The provisions of this statute are mandatory. The statute must be 

complied~with fully before an enhanced sentence for recidivism may be imposed. State v. 

Cavallaro, 210 W.Va. 237, 557 S.E.2d 291 (2001, per curiam). 

In this case, the Notice of the "information of Prior Conviction" was filed in the Office of 

the Circuit Clerk on January 5, 2007 (Appendix page 67). A copy of the Notice show Petitioner 

was pers@nally served on January 8, the same day the September 2006 term of the Nicholas 

County Circuit Court adjourned. The January term commenced on January 9, 2007, and the 

Petitioner was not brought before the Court to say whether he was the same person named in the 

prior convictions until April 30, 2007 ( Appendix pages 104, 109). 
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Thus Court failed to comply with a mandatory procedure. As this Court said in Cavallaro, 

supra, "The provisions ofthis statute are mandatory. The statute must be complied with fully 

before an enhanced sentence for recidivism may be imposed." See Syl. pt. 2, Wanstreet v. 

Bordenkircher, 166 W.Va. 623, 276 S.E, 2d 205 (1981). "Habitual criminal proceedings 

providing for enhanced or additional punishment on proof of one or more prior convictions are 

wholly statutory. In such proceedings, a court has no inherent or common law power or 

jurisdiction. Being in derogation of the common law, such statutes are generally held to require a 

strict construction in favor of the prisoner." 

Accordingly, the Prosecutor failed to comply with the mandatory requirements of the 

habitual criminal statute and the Court erred by imposing a life sentence, in the face of a failure to 

follow those requirements. As in Cavallaro, Petitioner prays that this Court reverse that part of 

the judgment imposing life imprisonment under the recidivist statute. 

B. Whether the Circuit Court's imposition of the life recidivist in this matter is 

unconstitutionally. disproportionate and excessive in this matter given.the Petitioner's 

criminal history and the fact that the conviction which triggered the recidivist was not a 

violent offense.; 

"Article III, Section 5 of the West Virginia Constitution, which contains the cruel and 

unusual punishment counterpart to.the eighth Amendment of the United States Constitution, has 

an express statement of the proportionality principle: "Penalties shall be proportioned to the 

character and degree of the offence," Syllabus Point 8, State v. Vance, 164 W.Va. 216,262 S.E. 

2d 423 (1980). 
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In detennining whether a given sentence violates the proportionality principle found in the 

West Virginia Constitution, Article III, Section 5, consideration is given to the nature of the 

offense, the legislative purpose behind the punishment, a comparison of the punishment with what 

would be; inflicted in other jurisdictions, and a comparison with other offenses within the same 

jurisdictien. "A sentence is constitutionally excessive if it makes no measurable contribution to 

acceptable goals of punishment, is notbfug more than the purposeless imposition of pain and 

suffering, and is grossly out ofproportion to the severity of the crime." (citations omitted) State v 

Keelev. 814 So. 2d 664 at 668 (La Ct. App 4th Cir. 2002). Petitioner contends life imprisonment is 

grossly out of proportion for the act of driving recklessly and endangering a child. 

The Petition admitted to four prior offenses, three of which had occ:urred more than twenty 

years bef'Ore, and the fourth was eighteen years old. While none of the offenses, separately, are 

punishab1e by life imprisonment, all were fairly serious. 

The PetitioQ.er admitted to the following prior convictions: 

3/3111982 Grand Larceny 

3/3111982 Unlawful Wounding 

8/1311982 Receiving Stolen Goods 

1:11211989 Grand Larceny 1Receiving Stolen Goods (Appendix pages II to 12) 

'lfue Circuit Court questioned the proportionality part of the case and said that" the Court 

would n(j)te that despite the arguments of the State ofWest Virginia this is ----this is a close call 

on the pnoportionality issue" (Appendix page 138) However, the Court detennined that the prior 

unlawful wounding conviction from 1982 justified the violence requirements of the 
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proporti0nality principle. Further, the Circuit Court made a determination that the offense of 

child newlect creating a risk of serious bodily injury is "a crime ofviolence which creates a threat 

of criminal violence, a significant risk of injury to the person and that being an infant child" 

(Appendix page 138). This Court has determined that Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol is a 

violent offense that would justify a life recidivist sentence under the proportionality principles set 

forth herein. However, this Court; has not gone so far as to say that the crime for which the 

Defendant was convicted rises to that level. In a DUI situation, the Court is concerned about the 

drivers ah>ility to control one actions due to intoxication. In this case there is no allegation that the 

Petitioner was under the influence of alcohol or did anything that would be consistent with the 

dangers imposed by Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol line of reasoning. Thus, the 

Petitioner contends that the Circuit Court was over reaching in its determination that the 

Petitioner's conviction for gross child neglect creating risk of serious bodily injury or death is a 

crime of violence to support a life recidivist conviction. 

In State v. Hayes, 845 So. 2d 542 (2003) the Louisiana Court dealt with a similar case: 

The sentencing range fo the underlying offense, theft when the misappropriation 
or taking amounts to a value of five hundred dollars or more, is imprisonment.. for 
more than ten years and/or a fine of not more than three thousand dollars. The 
underlying offense occurred between September 5, 1996, and September 13, 1996. 
The defend,ant's two predicate offenses consist of simple robbery ... and forgery [.] 
in accordance with the habitual offender statute in effect at the time of the 
adjudication as a multiple offender, the defendant was subject to a mandatory 
sentence of life imprisonment and received such mandated sentence. [internal 
citations omitted] 

Upon appeal, the Court concluded, "that all of the defendant's offenses combined cannot 

support .a loss of liberty, at age 34, for the rest of his life." Hayes, 845 S02d at 545. When 
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Hayes was re- sentenced, he was given a term of thirty years, a sentence permitted under 

Louisiana's recidivist statute, and the Court affirmed. 

The Petitioner asserts that should this Court uphold the recidivist procedure in this case, 

that a life sentence is disproportionate to the nature of the underlying offense, and that this Court 

should strike down his sentence of life imprisonment. 

C. Whether trial counsel in this matter improperly advised the Petitioner to 

stipulate"the underlying convictions during the Habeas Corpus proceeding; 

The Petitioner asserts that trial counsel in this matter was constitutionally ineffective 

during the recidivist proc~edings in this matter. 

The Petitioner contends his trial counsel was ineffective during the recidivist in this 

matter. At the start of the life recidivist trial, Petitioner's counsel advised Petitioner to admit the 

allegations contained therein without realizing any benefit or bargain from the State. The 

Petitioner's only issue that was tied to his admission was the ability to appeal the violation of the 

recidivist~act procedural issues and proportionality matters as set forth above. This would have 

been avahlable to the Petitioner regardless of admitting the allegations 'Contained in the recidivist 

petition. Thus, the Petitioner realized absolutely nothing in this matter from his admission and 

was ultimately sentenced to life in prison. Further, the Petitioner asserted during his Habeas 

proceedin;g (Appendix page 82) that he had a legal basis for challenging convictions contained in 

the recidivist Petition. Trial counsel testified at the Habeas evidentiary hearing that he believed 

there were no factual reasons to challenge the issues contained in the recidivist petition and 

further stated that he had legal arguments only with respect to the same. Thus, rather than hold 
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the State ofWest Virginia to its burden ofproof, trial counsel chose the course of action to throw 

in the towel in this matter. (Appendix page 107) 

The Petitioner asserts that trial counsel performance in this matter was in violation of his 

duty to provide effective assistance and accordingly the life recidivist petition should be set aside. 

The law regarding effective assistance of counsel is as follows: 

Where a counsel's performance, attacked as ineffective, arises from occurrences involving 

strategy,ltactics, and arguable courses of action, his conduct will be deemed effectively assistive 

ofhis client's interests, unless no reasonably qualified defense attorney would have so acted in the 

defense 0fan accuse, State v. Thomas, 157 W.Va. 640,203 S.E.2d 445 (1974); State v. Wilson. 

190 W.Va. 583,439 S.E.2d 448 (1993). In the context of habeas corpus review of criminal 

proceedings, the Petitioner must prove that (1) counsel's performance was deficient under an 

objective standard of reasonableness; and (2) there is reasonable probability that, but for counsel's 

errors, the result of the proceedings would have different, State ex reI. Bess v. Legursky. 195 

W.Va. 435,465 S.E. 2d 892 (1995); Strickland v. Washington. 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80

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