IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA 


NO. 12-0396 


ROBERT L. HOLCOMB, 


Petitioner, 

v. 

DAVID BALLARD, Warden, 
Mt. Olive Correctional Complex, 

Respondent. 

BRIEF OF THE RESPONDENT, 

DAVID BALLARD, WARDEN 


I.

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 


This Court has twice held that where a defendant is not arraigned on a recidivist information 

in the same term of court in which he was convicted of the underlying offense, the trial court is 

without jurisdiction to sentence him on the recidivist information. Syl. Pt. 3, State ex rei. Housden 

v. Adams, 143 W. Va. 601, 103 S.E.2d 873 (1958); Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Cavallaro, 210 W. Va. 237, 

557 S.E.2d 291 (2001). Therefore, the court below was without jurisdiction to sentence the 

Petitioner on the second recidivist information, since the Petitioner was not arraigned thereon in the 

same term of court in which he was retried on the underlying offense. 

The Respondent contends, however, that the second recidivist information was a legal nullity; 

when the court below awarded a new trial following the Petitioner's initial conviction on the 

underlying charges, it did not award a new trial on the recidivist proceedings, which were timely 

filed and prosecuted according to statute. Nothing in the original recidivist proceedings was affected 

by the error which led to reversal ofPetitioner's conviction on the underlying charges; and nothing 

in the retrial ofthe underlying charges was affected by, or had an effect on, the result in the original 

recidivist proceedings. Therefore, this Court should vacate the sentence imposed on the basis ofthe 

Petitioner's admissions to the second recidivist information; and remand this case with instructions 

that the court below dismiss the second recidivist information, and thereafter sentence the Petitioner 

to life imprisonment on the original recidivist information. 

A sentence oflife imprisonment is neither disproportionate nor excessive under the facts and 

circumstances of this case. The triggering felony was a crime with a potential for violence: Child 

Neglect Creating a Substantial Risk of Serious Bodily Injury or Death, W. Va. Code § 61-8D-4( e). 
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A jury found that the Petitioner was the individual who had earlier committed four serious felony 

offenses, one ofwhich (Unlawful Wounding) was a violent offense. In short, proceedings under the 

habitual criminal statute were warranted, and life imprisonment was, an appropriate punishment, 

given the totality of the Petitioner's criminal history. State ex reI. Daye v. McBride, 222 W. Va. 17, 

23,658 S.E.2d 547,553 (2007), cert denied, 555 U.S. 858 (2008). 

Additionally, the Petitioner failed to provide this Court with an adequate record for review 

of the proportionality issue. State v. Waldron, 228 W. Va. 577, _, 723 S.E.2d 402,408 (2012). In 

this case, based on the materials contained in the Appendix, we know virtually nothing about the 

triggering offense other than it involved a car and a child; and we know almost nothing about the past 

offenses other than the fact that the original recidivist jury concluded the Petitioner had committed 

them. 

The Petitioner's trial counsel did not provide ineffective assistance ofcounsel by advising him 

to conditionally admit the prior offenses in the second recidivist information. The Petitioner gained 

something from the plea deal (the fifth charge in the information was dismissed and not considered), 

and he lost nothing, as he retained the right to appeal all recidivist issues, including the sentence. 

Although the Petitioner claims in these habeas proceedings that he had bona fide defenses to the prior 

convictions, he presented no evidence whatsoever to support this claim, other than his own self

serving testimony which was incomprehensible, and presents no specifics to this Court on appeal. 

IV. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

The Respondent believes that this case is proper for consideration on the Court's Rule 20 

docket, as it involves an issue of first impression: whether a new trial is required on a recidivist 
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information, W. Va. Code § 61-11-19, where the underlying conviction is reversed and the defendant 

is convicted again on retrial. 

v. 

ARGUMENT 

A. 	 UNDER THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS CASE, WHERE 
THE PETITIONER HAD ALREADY BEEN CONVICTED BY JURY ON A 
RECIDMST INFORMATION FOLLOWING HIS INITIAL CONVICTION, 
WHERE THE INITIAL CONVICTION IN THE UNDERLYING CASE WAS 
SUBSEQUENTLY OVERTURNED, AND WHERE THE PETITIONER WAS 
AGAIN CONVICTED ON RETRIAL, THE PETITIONER WAS NOT 
ENTITLED TO A NEW TRIAL ON A NEW RECIDIVIST INFORMATION. 

Standard ofReview: "Where the issue on an appeal from the circuit court is clearly a question 

oflaw or involving an interpretation ofa statute, we apply a de novo standard ofreview." Syi. Pt. 1, 

Chrystal R.M v. Charlie A.L., 194 W. Va. 138,459 S.E.2d415 (1995); Syi. Pt. 1, State v. Cavallaro, 

210 W. Va. 237, 557 S.E.2d 291 (2001). 

West Virginia Code § 61-11-19, "Procedure in trial of persons for second or third offense," 

provides in relevant part that: 

It shall be the duty of the prosecuting attorney when he has knowledge of former 
sentence or sentences to the penitentiary of any person convicted of an offense 
punishable by confinement in the penitentiary to give information thereof to the court 
immediately upon conviction and before sentence. Said court shall, before expiration 
ofthe term at which such person was convicted, cause such person or prisoner to be 
brought before it, and upon an information filed by the prosecuting attorney, setting 
forth the records ofconviction and sentence, or convictions and sentences, as the case 
may be, and alleging the identity ofthe prisoner with the person named in each, shall 
require the prisoner to say whether he is the same person or not.. .. 

(Emphasis supplied.) 

The primary purpose of the statute is ''' ... to deter felony offenders, meaning persons who 

have been convicted and sentenced previously on a penitentiary offense, from committing subsequent 
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felony offenses[,]' Syl. Pt. 3, in part, State v. Jones, 187 W. Va. 600,420 S.E.2d 736 (1992) and 'to 

protect society from habitual criminals .... ' State v. Stout, 116 W. Va. 398, 402, 180 S.E. 443, 444 

(1935)." State ex reI. Appleby v. Recht, 213 W. Va. 503,519,583 S.E.2d 800,814 (2002). 

Notwithstanding the purpose ofthe statute, this Court has consistently held that its provisions 

are mandatory and jurisdictional. State ex reI. Ringer v. Boles, 151 W. Va. 864, 157 S.E.2d 554 

(1967); State v. Jones, 187 W. Va. 600,420 S.E.2d 736 (1992). Consistent therewith, the Court has 

twice held that where a defendant is not arraigned on a recidivist information in the same term of 

court in which he was convicted of the underlying offense, the trial court is without jurisdiction to 

sentence him on the recidivist information. Syl. Pt. 3, State ex reI. Housden v. Adams, 143 W. Va. 

601,103 S.E.2d 873 (1958); Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Cavallaro, 210 W. Va. 237, 557 S.E.2d 291 (2001). 

In the instant case, it is undisputed that the Petitioner was not arraigned on the second 

recidivist information during the same term of court in which he was convicted on retrial of the 

underlying offense. (App. 26-27.) Therefore, the sentence on the second recidivist information 

cannot stand, or be deemed harmless error, because under this Court's precedents the court below had 

no jurisdiction to impose it. Syl. Pt. 3, State ex reI. Housden v. Adams, supra; Syl. Pt. 2, State v. 

Cavallaro, supra. 

Notwithstanding the above, the Respondent contends that this is not the end of the inquiry. 

The question for decision is: was the State required to file a new recidivist information after the 

retrial, and was the Petitioner entitled to a new trial thereon? The Respondent believes that the 

answer to both questions is no, and that the error in this case can therefore be remedied by a remand 

for the court below to sentence the Petitioner on the initial recidivist information. 
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The court recognized at least a part of this issue as soon as the Petitioner was convicted on 

retrial: 

In regards to this matter, out of an abundance of caution - and I haven't decided 
exactly how we will proceed from this point forward as to the recidivist issue, the 
State of West Virginia - they'll have until about 4:00 o'clock tomorrow since 
tomorrow concludes the term - will need to file an information in this case charging 
the prior offenses, and then we will deal post-trial as to whether or not I believe the 
defendant's entitled to a new trial on the issue of recidivist, or whether or not I will 
impose sentence based upon the prior finding of the jury on the recidivist statute. 

CAppo 27, citing Tr. Transcript of January 4, 2007, pp. 208-09.) 

The court never did decide the issue. Rather, as set forth in the Statement of the Case, the 

State filed the new recidivist information; the Petitioner was not timely arraigned thereon, and 

thereafter filed a motion to dismiss on that basis; the Petitioner entered conditional admissions that 

he was the individual who had committed the prior felonies set forth in the new recidivist 

information, thus preserving for appellate review the issue raised in the motion to dismiss; and the 

Petitioner was sentenced on the basis ofthe conditional admissions. 

In the habeas proceedings, the court below analyzed this whole sequence of events as a due 

process issue, concluding that since the second recidivist information was identical to the fust, the 

Petitioner had adequate notice ofthe allegations against him in the second information and the failure 

to timely arraign was therefore harmless error. CAppo 26-30.) Although the Respondent agrees with 

the court's factual findings - nothing in this sequence of events either surprised or prejudiced the 

Petitioner - it cannot agree with the court's analysis, since the issue under Housden and Cavallaro 

is jurisdiction, not due process.5 

5The "Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Ad Subjiciendum" mentions due process only in 
passing, although to be fair to the court below, the interjection of the magic words in the final 

Ccontinued ... ) 
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As stated, the Respondent believes that the real issue here is whether it was necessary for the 

State to file a new recidivist information at the conclusion ofthe retrial proceedings. The Respondent 

contends that it was not. 

When the court below awarded a new trial following the Petitioner's conviction on the 

underlying charges, it did not award a new trial on the recidivist proceedings. (Supp. App. 1-5.) 

Those original proceedings were timely filed and prosecuted according to statute; the Petitioner had 

a jury trial; and the jury determined that the Petitioner was the individual who had committed four 

previous felony offenses. See fn. 3, infra. Nothing in the original recidivist proceedings was affected 

by the error which led to reversal of Petitioner's conviction on the underlying charges; and nothing 

in the retrial of the underlying charges was affected by, or had an effect on, the result in the original 

recidivist proceedings 

What we have here is the flip side ofa line ofcases in which issues ofguilt and penalty were 

bifurcated at trial; this Court has consistently refused to grant a new trial on guilt or innocence, 

despite having granted a new trial on sentence. State v. Doman, 204 W. Va. 289, 512 S.E.2d 211 

(1998); State v. Finley, 219 W. Va. 747,639 S.E.2d 839 (2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1298 (1007); 

State ex rei. Shelton v. Painter, 221 W. Va. 578,655 S.E.2d 794 (2007); State v. McLaughlin, 226 

W. Va. 229, 700 S.E.2d 289 (2010). 

The following language from State ex rei. Shelton v. Painter, supra, 221 W. Va. at 586, 655 

S.E.2d at 802, sets forth a cogent rationale (albeit, again, on the flip side): 

5(...continued) 
sentence of a four page argument certainly muddled what had previously been a straightforward 
statutory argument under Housden and Cavallaro. (App. 10-13.) 
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[W]here the actions of trial counsel could not have affected the finding of guilt, we 
believe that it would be a waste ofjudicial resources to require an entirely new trial. 
Therefore, rather than require a new trial on the issues of guilt and penalty, we 
believe the more prudent course would be to require a limited new trial only on the 
penalty issue .... 

In the instant case, the court below would have beenjustified in following his own inclination, 

voiced immediately after the Petitioner's conviction on remand, to just " ... impose sentence based 

upon the prior finding of the jury on the recidivist statute." (App. 27, citing Trial Transcript of 

January 4,2007, pp. 208-09.) Going through new recidivist proceedings added nothing, as nothing 

in the original proceedings had been affected in any way by the reversal of, and then re-conviction 

on, the underlying proceedings. 

Ofcourse, what happened here is that because the time constraints required everyone to act in 

an abundance ofcaution, a new recidivist information was filed, and the Petitioner was sentenced on 

the basis ofhis admissions thereto. As set forth above, the Respondent contends that all ofthis was 

a legal nullity, as the Petitioner was not entitled to new recidivist proceedings. In the event the Court 

agrees, this leaves one final question for resolution: what is the proper disposition of this case? 

As counterintuitive as it may sound, the Respondent believes that the proper disposition is for 

this Court to vacate the sentence, which was imposed on the basis of the Petitioner's admissions to 

the second recidivist information, and to remand the case with instructions that the court below 

dismiss the second information and thereafter sentence the Petitioner to life imprisonment on the 

original recidivist information.6 

6As set forth in Argument B, infra, a sentence of life imprisonment is mandatory. Sy 1. Pt. 3, 
in part, State ex reI. Cobb v. Boles, 149 W. Va. 365,141 S.E.2d 59 (1965); Syl. Pt. 5, in part, State 
ex reI. Combs v. Boles, 151 W. Va. 194, 151 S.E.2d 115 (1966). 
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B. 	 UNDER THE FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF TIDS CASE, THE 
PETITIONER'S SENTENCE OF LIFE IMPRISONMENT WAS NOT 
CONSTITUTIONALLY DISPROPORTIONATE. 

Standard of review: "The Supreme Court of Appeals reviewed sentencing orders ... under 

a deferential abuse of discretion standard, unless the order violates statutory or constitutional 

commands." Syl. Pt. 1 in part, State v. Lucas, 201 W. Va. 271, 496 S.E.2d 221 (1997). "In 

determining whether a given sentence violates the proportionality principle found in Article III, 

Section 5 of the West Virginia Constitution, consideration is given to the nature of the offense, the 

legislative purpose behind the punishment, a comparison of the plmishment with what would be 

inflicted in other jurisdictions, and a comparison with other offenses within the same jurisdiction." 

Syl. Pt. 5, Wanstreet v. Bordenkircher, 166 W. Va. 523,276 S.E.2d 205 (1981). 

As a threshold matter, the Petitioner's argument must be construed, conceptually at least, as 

an attack on the constitutionality ofthe habitual criminal statute as applied to his case, not as an attack 

on the sentence imposed. This is so because it has been the law in this jurisdiction for decades that 

if one is found by a jury to be the same person named in a recidivist information, W. Va. Code 

§ 61-11-18, then"... the court is without authority to impose any sentence other than as prescribed 

by [the statute]." Syl. Pt. 3, in part, State ex reI. Cobb v. Boles, 149 W. Va. 365, 141 S.E.2d 59 

(1965); Syl. Pt. 5, in part, State ex rei. Combs v. Boles, 151 W. Va. 194, 151 S.E.2d 115 (1966); State 

ex rei. Daye v. McBride, 222 W. Va. 17,22,658 S.E.2d 547,552 (2007), cert. denied, 555 U.S. 858 

(2008) (expressly reaffirming Cobb and Combs). 

In this appeal, as below, the Petitioner contends that his sentence is constitutionally 

disproportionate and excessive because (a) the triggering offense was not a "violent" offense under 
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the relevant case law/ and (b) the prior offenses set forth in the recidivist information, although 

serious in nature, were 18-20 years old. 

First, the court below determined that the triggering offense in this case was indeed a crime 

of violence, because it created"... a significant risk of injury to the person and that being an infant 

child." (App. 138, emphasis supplied.) This Court has never held that a life sentence offends 

proportionality principles ifthe triggering felony did not involve actual violence. InState v. Housden, 

184 W. Va. 171, 174,399 S.E.2d 882,885 (1990), the court found that the felony offense ofburglary 

carried the potential for violence, even though the defendant had taken steps to ensure that the victim 

would not be present when the burglary was committed.

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